
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, October 24, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance……..…………………………..….Board Member Brad Lindmark 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call .................................................................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentations – None 
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – John Small, Dumpsters, Con 

 
6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Approval of September 26, 2024 minutes  
B. Layover of October 10, 2024 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda….…………………………………………….………………….…… Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments shall lay over until 

the second board meeting after they are first introduced) 
A.   Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board, Annual Compensation: None 

1.   Terri Hitzke (New Appointment), Loves Park, Illinois, to serve the remainder of a four-year 
term (Mohammad Yunus) expiring January 2028 

B.   Board of Review, Annual Compensation: $31,430.62 
1.  Roy Forshay (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, to serve the remainder of a two-year       

term (Thomas Ewing) expiring May 2026  



 

wincoil.gov | Page 2  

                            
C.   Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment Authority, Annual Compensation: None 

1.   Miles Nielsen (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, to serve the remainder of a five-year term    
(Geno LaFrate) expiring July 2027 

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees…………..……………………………… …….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
A. Finance Committee……………………………………………… ……John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the General 

Fund to be Laid Over 
3. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the IMRF Fund 

to be Laid Over 
4. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the County 

Highway Fund to be Laid Over 
5. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the County 

Bridge Fund to be Laid Over 
6. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Federal Aid 

Matching Fund to be Laid Over 
7. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Health 

Department Fund to be Laid Over 
8. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Tort 

Judgment and Liability Fund to be Laid Over 
9. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Social 

Security Fund to be Laid Over 
10. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Veterans 

Assistance Fund to be Laid Over 
11. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Detention 

Home Fund to be Laid Over 
12. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Historical 

Museum Fund to be Laid Over 
13. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Nursing 

Home Operations Fund to be Laid Over 
14. Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Children’s 

Advocacy Fund to be Laid Over 
 

B. Zoning Committee ....................................................... .Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 

1. Ordinance Granting Site Approval of a 5 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (aka a 
Solar Farm) on a 75.30 +- Acre Site Commonly known as 5150 Tate Road (PIN: 07-31-
200-006), Rockford, Illinois 61101, in Owen Township, District 5, to be laid-over 

2. Resolution Authorizing an Adjustment in the Per Diem for the Winnebago County 
Zoning Board of Appeals to be laid-over 

3. Committee Report 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 3  

 
C. Economic Development Committee ......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report  
 

D. Operations and Administrative Committee ........... Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Blue Cross Blue 

Shield for the Administration of a Self-Funded PPO/POS Insurance Plan 
3. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Northern Illinois 

Health Plans (NIHP) for Third-Party Administrative Services 
4. Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with AMWINS Group 

Benefits for the Administration of a Retiree Medical and RX Plan 
5. Resolution Awarding Replacement of Outdoor Warning Sirens County-Wide Using 

2025 Operating Budget Funds 
 

E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (24-037) Resolution Authorizing the Jurisdictional Transfer of Bell School Road, from 

Argus Drive to Guilford Road, Out of the Winnebago County Highway System and into 
the City of Rockford Street System (Section 20-00676-00-WR) 
Cost:  $N/A          C.B. District:  8 

3. (24-038) Resolution Authorizing the Jurisdictional Transfer of Linden Road, from Alpine 
Road Easterly for 2,662 Feet, Out of the Winnebago County Highway System and into 
the City of Rockford Street System (Section 23-00715-00-WR) 
Cost:  $N/A          C.B. District:  9 

4. (24-039) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Annual Professional Services 
Agreement with Various Engineering, Structural, Geotechnical, Testing, and Appraisal 
Services Companies  
Cost:  $125,000. (not to exceed)           C.B. District:  County Wide 

5. (24-040) Resolution Authorizing a Joint Funding Agreement with the United States 
Department of the Interior Geological Survey for the Operations of a Streamflow 
Gaging Station on the Kishwaukee River 
Cost:   USGS $ 5,760 Annually/5 Years            C.B. District:  9, 11 

WC    $ 11,902.40 Annually/5 Years 
6. (24-041) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for Winnebago Road Infrastructure 

Improvements (Section 21-00702-00-DR) 
Cost:   FEMA $ 266,366.63         C.B. District:  1 

   County $ 88,788.88 
7. (24-042) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for the Elevated Water Storage Tank 

Improvements at the Winnebago County Water District  
(Section 24-00730-00-MS) 
Cost:  $ 59,600        C.B. District:  11 

8. (24-043) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Materials Bids for the Riverside 
Boulevard Project Between Material Avenue and Sage Drive  
(Section 23-00624-02-LT)  
Cost: State     $ 668,301 



 

wincoil.gov | Page 4  

County $ 128,908.84           C.B. District:  17, 20 
9. (24-044) Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of a Utility Tractor 

Cost:  $ 30,284.17              C.B. District:  County Wide 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding Inmate Health Care Services – JDC and Jail Contract Extension 
3. Resolution Awarding Replacement Dishwasher Bid for the Winnebago County Jail 

 
G. Legislative and Lobbying Committee……………………….Jaime Salgado, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Appointments read in on September 26, 2024 
A. Winnebago County Health Department, Annual Compensation: None 

1. Penelope M. Lechtenberg (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, to serve the 
remainder of a three-year term (Louise (Luci) Hoover) expiring October 2025 

2. Lori Thompson (New Appointment), Loves Park, Illinois, to serve the remainder of a 
three-year term (Patricia Lewis) expiring October 2027  

 
B. New Milford Fire Protection District, Annual Compensation: Not to exceed $1,000 

1. Walter Anderson (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, to serve the remainder of a 3-
year term (Robert Sickler) expiring May 2027 

 
C. Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment Authority (RAVE), Annual Compensation: None 

1. Megan McCoy (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, to serve a five-year term expiring 
June 2029 

 
11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ......................................................Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, November 14, 2024 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Approval of 
Minutes 























 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 











Appointments 



      404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

Executive Summary 
Date: 10/24/24 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board Appointment 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The Chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following persons to 
serve as County appointees on the Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board:  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
Terri Hitzke (New Appointment), Loves Park, Illinois, to serve the remainder of a four-year term 
(Mohammad Yunus) expiring January, 2028 

Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board 
Location: Region 1 Planning Council, 127 N Wyman Street, Suite 100, Rockford, IL 61101 

Service 
Description: 

The purpose of the Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board (WCCMHB) is 
to plan, implement, and monitor a system of mental health and addiction services for 
Winnebago County residents suffering from serious mental illness and addictions 

Board 
Composition: 

Resident of Winnebago County, be representative of interested groups of the community 
such as local health department, medical societies, local comprehensive health planning 
agencies, hospital boards, lay associations concerned with mental health, 
developmental disabilities and substance abuse, as well as the general public. Only one 
(1) member shall be a member of the governing body. No member of the community
mental health board may be a full-time or part-time employee of the Department of
Human Services or a board member, employee or any other individual receiving
compensation from any facility or service operating under contract to the board.

 Term of Office: 

The term of office of each member of the community mental health board shall be for 4 
years, provided, however, that of the members first appointed, 2 shall be appointed for a 
term of 2 years, 2 for a term of 3 years and 3 for a term of 4 years. All terms shall be 
measured from the first day of the year of appointment. Vacancies shall be filled for the 
unexpired term in the same manner as original appointments. 

Bond:  None 
Attorney: Zukowski, Rogers, Flood & McArdle, (815) 459-2050 dmcardle@zrfmlaw.com 

Compensation: None 
Meetings: First Wednesday of every month at 2 PM CST at Region 1 Planning Council 

Origin of Entity: 
Established by county ordinance pursuant to the Illinois Community Mental Health Act, 
405ILCS 20/3(a)   Sec. 78-150. - Special retailers' occupation tax for mental health  
pursuant to (55 ILCS 5/5-1006.5) 

Property 
Tax/Funding: .005% countywide sales tax 

https://wincoil.us/departments/wccmhb/
https://wincoil.us/departments/wccmhb/
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1499&ChapterID=34
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=1499&ChapterID=34
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH78TA_ARTVIISPREOCTAMEHE
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH78TA_ARTVIISPREOCTAMEHE
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH78TA_ARTVIISPREOCTAMEHE
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH78TA_ARTVIISPREOCTAMEHE
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=005500050K5-1006.5
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=005500050K5-1006.5
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=005500050K5-1006.5
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=005500050K5-1006.5


Ms. Terri Hitzke
6220 Park Ridge Rd.
Loves Park, IL 61111

terrihitzke1@gmail.com
(309) 846-1632

July 26, 2024

Chairman Joseph Chiarelli
Winnebago County Board
Winnebago County Administration Center
404 Elm St.
Rockford, IL 61101

Dear Chairman Chiarelli,

I am writing to express my interest in the available seat on the Winnebago County Community
Mental Health Board (WCCMHB). With a Master of Science in Psychology and over 20 years of
experience in a variety of work related to the field of psychology, I am confident in my ability to
contribute effectively to this board, which is so integral to our community.

Currently, I am a self-employed Industrial-Organizational Psychologist and Professional
Development Consultant, where I empower my clients to achieve their professional and personal
goals. Quite often my profession involves assessing and improving my clients’ mental and emotional
health. Fostering healthy mental wellness is a central aspect to my approach of increasing my clients’
overall life satisfaction.

My past employment as a Psychology Professor at Rock Valley College and other universities
included promoting student mental wellness. On multiple occasions, I directly had to intervene with
law enforcement to get urgent help to suicidal and at-risk students. I participated as a faculty member
on various committees at Rock Valley College, such as the Curriculum Board and PAIC (Promoting
An Inclusive Community). Supporting diversity, inclusiveness, and the welfare of others is a top
priority to me.

I strive to support the Winnebago County community. For example, I have volunteered in the past at
the Jubilee Center in downtown Rockford, where I served our mentally ill homeless population. In
addition, I attend various fundraisers annually to contribute to campaigns that benefit our community
(Marshmallow’s HOPE, law enforcement fundraising events, etc.).

In addition, I am a professional and highly effective communicator. I have experience in survey and
test development, research and data analysis, presentation experience, and a strong academic
background, which I believe would be beneficial to the WCCMHB.

Included is my resume, which provides further detail about my qualifications. I would welcome the
opportunity to discuss how my experience and skills align with the needs of the WCCMHB. Thank
you for your consideration, and I look forward to the possibility of discussing this opportunity to help
serve Winnebago County residents.

Sincerely,

Terri Hitzke, M.S.



Terri Hitzke
Industrial-Organizational Psychologist | Professional Development Consultant

C O N T A C T

(309) 846-1632

terrihitzke1@gmail.com

terrihitzke

hitzke

6220 Park Ridge Rd.
Loves Park, IL 61111

C O M M U N I T Y

■ Verdi Club Women's Auxiliary

■ Former Volunteer at the Jubilee
Center in Rockford, IL (Shelter
centered on supporting the
mentally ill homeless
population)

■ Supports numerous fundraising
events yearly that contribute to
local law enforcement and
Winnebago County
organizations

S U M M A R Y

With a Master of Science degree in Industrial-Organizational Psychology
from Illinois State University, I am currently a self-employed psychologist
who empowers my clients through career, relationship, and life coaching.
My former career as a Professor at Rock Valley College and Upper Iowa
University was marked by a commitment to academic excellence and a
deep understanding of student needs. I also have an extensive academic
background with two years of graduate studies in a psychology doctoral
program at Southern Illinois University, after earning a foundational
Bachelor of Science in Psychology from Rockford University.

E X P E R I E N C E

Professional Development Consultant
2014 - PRESENT, ROCKFORD, IL

■ I provide customized coaching programs and strategic
guidance to foster clients in achieving their personal and
professional goals.

■ My highly empathetic and supportive approach helps to
deliver meaningful changes and to enhance client’s overall
life satisfaction.

Adjunct Psychology Professor
2015-2016, Upper Iowa University, ROCKFORD, IL

Associate & Adjunct Psychology Professor
2010-2015, Rock Valley College, ROCKFORD, IL
■ Faculty member on committees such as the Curriculum

Board and PAIC (Diversity Inclusiveness)

Research Assistant
2006-2008, Illinois State University, NORMAL, IL
■ Assistant Director of the Psychology Resource Center



S K I L L S
■ Interpersonal Communication
■ Empathetic Listening
■ Test and Survey Design
■ Research and Data Analysis
■ Career & Life Coaching
■ Relationship Counseling
■ Body Language Analysis
■ Organizing Fundraisers

P C S K I L L S

■ SPSS (Statistical Package for the
Social Sciences)

■ Excel
■ MS Word
■ Filmora Wondershare (video

editing)
■ Content Creating on YouTube
■ Social Media
■ ~100 WPM Typist

Teaching Assistant
2004-2006, Southern Illinois University, CARBONDALE, IL
■ Psychology Instructor for smaller, interactive classes, and

supported psychology faculty for larger, lecture-based
classes.

Consultant at ARC (Applied Research Consulting)
2004-2006, Southern Illinois University, CARBONDALE, IL
■ Qualitative/Quantitative HR research for businesses

E D U C A T I O N

Master of Science
Industrial & Organizational Psychology
Illinois State University, Normal IL

Bachelor of Science, SummaCum Laude
Psychology Major/Business Minor
Psi Chi, Secretary (Psychology National Honors
Society)
Rockford University, Rockford, IL

Southern Illinois University, Carbondale, IL
Two years in the Applied Psychology Doctoral Program

Rock Valley College, Rockford, IL
4.0 GPA, Dual-enrolled student while at Rockford University

Knox College, Galesburg, IL

P R E S E N T A T I O N S

Society for Industrial-Organizational Psychology
Annual Conference, New York City, NY, 2007
“Personality Predictors of Emotional Labor and Burnout in Childcare
Workers”

R E F E R E N C E S

Available upon request



      404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.gov 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

Executive Summary 
Date: October 24, 2024 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 

County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The Chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 

Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Roy Forshay of Rockford, Illinois, to serve the remainder of a 2-year term vacated by Thomas 
Ewing expiring May 2026 on the Board of Review. 

Board of Review 

Location:  
County Administration Building 
404 Elm Street 
Rockford, IL 61101 

Service 
Description:  

Provides property owners a venue to resolve assessed value complaints.  Serves as 
the final local administrative review for assessment complaints.  

Board 
Composition:  

Three (3) members appointed by the County Board Chairman with advice and consent 
of the County Board.  No more than two of the Board Members may be affiliated with 
the same political party (added members may be appointed in emergency situation) 
Must reside in Winnebago County. Experienced in property appraisal and tax 
administration. Must pass Review Exam 

Term of Office:  Two (2) years 
Compensation:  Two members $27,809.86 Annually, Chairman $32,959.68 annually 

Bond:  None 
Attorney:  States Attorney’s Office 

Meetings:  Convenes first Monday in June, meets as needed until year’s work complete, no later 
than March 15. 

Origin of Entity:  Property Tax Code 35 ILCS 200 Section 6 and Section 16 
Property 

Tax/Funding:  Funded through the General Fund which includes property tax revenue. 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  If applicable 

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=003502000HArt%2E+6&ActID=596&ChapterID=8&SeqStart=8800000&SeqEnd=10300000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=003502000HArt%2E+6&ActID=596&ChapterID=8&SeqStart=8800000&SeqEnd=10300000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=003502000HArt%2E+16+Div%2E+2&ActID=596&ChapterID=8&SeqStart=44400000&SeqEnd=46000000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=003502000HArt%2E+16+Div%2E+2&ActID=596&ChapterID=8&SeqStart=44400000&SeqEnd=46000000


kelyea
Rectangle

kelyea
Rectangle







      404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.gov 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

Executive Summary 
Date: October 24, 2024 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: RAVE - Rockford Area Venue and Entertainment Authority Board Appointment 

State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 

County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The Chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 

Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee on the Rockford Area Venue and Entertainment Authority Board: 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Miles Nielsen (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, to serve the remainder of a 5-year term 
vacated by Geno LaFrate expiring July 2027  

Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment Authority Board 

Location: 300 Elm Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

Service 
Description: 

Governing board for the BMO Harris Bank Center and other venues under their 
supervision 

Board 
Composition: 

Nine (9) members, three (3) of which are appointed by the County Board Chairman 
with the advice and consent of the County Board, five (5) appointed by City of 
Rockford, one (1) by Loves Park 

Compensation: None 

Bond: None 

Attorney: Tim Rollins 

Meetings: Fourth Wednesday at Noon 

Origin of Entity: 70 ILCS 200/240-1 to 240-60 
Property 

Tax/Funding: Revenues generated from events, subsidy from the city of Rockford, naming rights 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans: If applicable 

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=007002000HArt%2E+240&ActID=827&ChapterID=15&SeqStart=60000000&SeqEnd=61700000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=007002000HArt%2E+240&ActID=827&ChapterID=15&SeqStart=60000000&SeqEnd=61700000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=007002000HArt%2E+240&ActID=827&ChapterID=15&SeqStart=60000000&SeqEnd=61700000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=007002000HArt%2E+240&ActID=827&ChapterID=15&SeqStart=60000000&SeqEnd=61700000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=007002000HArt%2E+240&ActID=827&ChapterID=15&SeqStart=60000000&SeqEnd=61700000
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=007002000HArt%2E+240&ActID=827&ChapterID=15&SeqStart=60000000&SeqEnd=61700000


10/13/24 

Miles Nielsen 
523 Wood Road 
Rockford, IL 61107 
milesnielsen@me.com  
815-670-3862 
 

Re: RAVE Board of Trustees  

 

Hello, 

 

Thank you so much for the opportunity to serve on the Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment 
Authority Board.  

 

As a resident of Rockford, IL for the majority of my life, I feel a deep connection to the community, and 
would love to have a hand in building the music and arts community. For the last 25 years I have toured 
the country, as well as internationally, as a touring musician. With this experience, I have learned the 
business from both the performers perspective, as well as the buyers perceptive. This gives me a unique 
skill set to offer to the RAVE board. I have developed relationships with buyers, and booking agencies all 
over the world, which has given me the knowledge to both buy and execute shows on all levels.  

 

In the last 12 months, I (along with my wife Kelly, and two other business partners) have rehabbed and 
opened The Music Box in downtown Rockford, IL. It is a 175-capacity music venue, that hosts 
songwriters, bands, comedians, art, from all over the country. Owning and growing our business in 
downtown also gives me incentive to want to see the growth and success of things at both the BMO and 
Coronado. A strong downtown is a must in a city’s success, and I believe Rockford is trending in 
absolutely the right direction.  

 

The Nielsen family believes in Rockford, IL, and I hope you believe in my nomination for a position on 
the RAVE Board.  

 

Best, 

 
Miles Nielsen 
www.milesnielsen.com 

mailto:milesnielsen@me.com


 

 
Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 
 
 
 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the General Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $14,879,421 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Fourteen Million, Eight 
Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand, Four Hundred Twenty-One Dollars ($14,879,421) on all the 
taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “General Corporate Tax”: for 
the year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said county be and is hereby authorized and directed 
to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth 
in the General County Fund 2025 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
GENERAL FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of general 
county government as set forth in “An Act to Revise the Law in Relation to Counties”, as 
amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of 
Fourteen Million, Eight Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand, Four Hundred Twenty-One Dollars 
($14,879,421) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a 
“General Corporate Tax”:  for the year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said county be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for 
the objects and purposes as set forth in the General County Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
   Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the IMRF Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $2,000,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said 
year 2024, as a “Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said 
County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said 
amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund 2025 
Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025 and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Illinois Pension code,” as amended.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million Dollars ($2,000,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund Tax”:  and that the County 
Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that 
will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this ordinance to the County Clerk. 
 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the County Highway Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $3,061,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three Million, Sixty-One 
Thousand Dollars ($3,061,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “County Highway Tax”: for the purpose set forth in chapter 
121, paragraph 5-401 and 5-601 of the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981 and that the County Clerk 
of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will 
produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Highway Fund 2025 
Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY HIGHWAY FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Three 
Million, Sixty-One Thousand Dollars ($3,061,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “County Highway Tax”: for the purpose 
set forth in chapter 121, paragraph 5-401 and 5-601 of the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981 and 
that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate 
of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County 
Highway Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                              
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the County Bridge Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $634,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Six Hundred, Thirty-Four 
Thousand Dollars ($634,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, for the said year 2024 as a “County Bridge Tax”: for the purpose of constructing any 
bridge or bridges over a stream, or any approach or approaches thereto by means of an 
embankment or trestle work on a public road, as provided by law and that the County Clerk of said 
County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said 
amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Bridge Fund 2025 Appropriations 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY BRIDGE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Six 
Hundred Thirty-Four Thousand Dollars ($634,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “County Bridge Tax”:  for the purpose of 
constructing any bridge or bridges over a stream, or any approach or approaches thereto by 
means of an embankment or trestle work on a public road, as provided by law and that the 
County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation 
that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Bridge Fund 
2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the Federal Aid Matching Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $2,077,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Million, Seventy-
Seven Thousand Dollars ($2,077,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, 
State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Federal Aid Matching Tax”: for the purpose of 
providing funds for the proportionate share of the expenses in construction of highways in the 
federal aid secondary system, as provided by law, in chapter 121, paragraph 5-603, of the Illinois 
Revised Statutes - 1981, and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and 
directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as 
set forth in the Federal Aid Matching Fund 2025 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
FEDERAL AID MATCHING FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “Illinois Highway Code,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million, Seventy-Seven Thousand Dollars ($2,077,000) on all the taxable property in the County 
of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Federal Aid Matching Tax”:  for the 
purpose of providing funds for the proportionate share of the expenses in construction of 
highways in the federal aid secondary system, as provided by law, in chapter 121, paragraph 5-
603, of the Illinois Revised Statutes - 1981, and that  the County Clerk of said County be and is 
hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for 
the objects and purposes as set forth in the Federal Aid Matching Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the Health Department Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $2,312,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Million, Three 
Hundred and Twelve Thousand Dollars ($2,312,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “County Public Health Fund Tax”: for the year 2024 and that 
the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of 
taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the County Public 
Health Fund 2025 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT FUND 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State 
of Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the Fiscal Year 
October 1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act in Relation 
to the Establishment and Maintenance of County and Multiple County Public Health 
Departments,” as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of 
Two Million, Three Hundred Twelve Thousand Dollars ($2,312,000) on all the taxable property 
in the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “County Public Health Fund Tax”:  for the 
year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed 
to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as 
set forth in the County Public Health Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County 
Of Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted,   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTITTA,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 
THE COUNTY OF  

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



    Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By: 

Committee: 

Committee Date: 

Resolution Title:  

County Code:  

Board Meeting Date: 

Steve Schultz 

Finance Committee 

October 17th, 2024 

Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 
2025 for the Tort Judgment and Liability Fund 

Not Applicable 

October 24th, 2024 

Budget Information: 
Was item budgeted?   Yes    Appropriation Amount:   $4,853,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:   N/A   Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Four Million, Eight 
Hundred Fifty-Three Thousand Dollars ($4,853,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Tort Judgment and Liability Insurance 
Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend 
a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Tort 
Judgment and Liability Insurance Fund 2025 Appropriations. 

Recommendation: Staff concurs 

Contract/Agreement: N/A 

Legal Review:  N/A 

Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
TORT JUDGMENT AND LIABILITY FUND 

WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort 
Immunity Act,” as amended.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Four 
Million, Eight Hundred Fifty-Three Thousand Dollars ($4,853,000) on all the taxable property in 
the County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Tort Judgment and 
Liability Insurance Tax”: and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized 
and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and 
purposes as set forth in the Tort Judgment and Liability Insurance Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTITTA,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 
THE COUNTY OF  

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the Social Security Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $5,200,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Five Million, Two 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($5,200,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, 
State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Social Security and Medicare Fund Tax”: and that 
the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of 
taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Social 
Security and Medicare Fund 2025 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
              SOCIAL SECURITY FUND 

WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in the “Illinois Revised Statutes chapter 108-1/2, paragraph 7-
172.2.”.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Five 
Million, Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($5,200,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Social Security and Medicare Fund Tax”: 
and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a 
rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Social Security and Medicare Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTITTA,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 
THE COUNTY OF  

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steven Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the Veterans Assistance Fund  
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $1,120,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Million, One Hundred 
and Twelve Thousand Dollars ($1,120,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Veterans Assistance Tax”: and that the 
County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation 
that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Veterans Assistance 
Fund 2025 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1  

2024 CO 

T A X L E V Y 
VETERANS ASSISTANCE FUND 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and 

 
WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 

County Government as set forth in the “An Act to Revise the Law in Relation to Counties”, as 
amended, and the Military Veterans Assistance Act (330 ILCS 45/0.01 et seq.), as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, One Hundred Twenty Thousand Dollars ($1,120,000) on all the taxable property in the 
County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024, as a “Veterans Assistance Tax”; and 
that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of 
taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Veterans 
Assistance Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2  

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JOHN BUTITTA, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF  
 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS  DAY OF  2024. 
 
 
 

 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the Detention Home Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $1,640,000 
 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Million, Six 
Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($1,640,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the year 2024 for the purpose of purchasing, erecting, leasing, or 
otherwise providing, establishing, supporting, and maintaining such detention home, and said tax 
was authorized by the legal voters of the County of Winnebago on November 2, 1954. the County 
Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will 
produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Detention Home Fund 2025 
Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
DETENTION HOME FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act to Authorities 
to Provide for the Temporary Care and Custody of Dependent, Delinquent, or Truant Children, 
and to Levy and Collect a Tax for the Purpose.” 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Million, Six Hundred and Forty Thousand Dollars ($1,640,000) on all the taxable property in the 
County of Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the year 2024 for the purpose of purchasing, erecting, 
leasing, or otherwise providing, establishing, supporting, and maintaining such detention home, 
and said tax was authorized by the legal voters of the County of Winnebago on November 2, 
1954.  the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate 
of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Detention Home Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the Historical Museum Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $150,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Hundred  Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($150,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, as a “Historical Museum Tax”: for the year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said County 
be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount 
for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Historical Museum Fund 2025 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 
 

2024 CO 
 

T A X    L E V Y 
HISTORICAL MUSEUM FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes of paying the expenses of General 
County Government as set forth in “An Act to Levy Taxes for the Maintenance of Historical 
Museums,” as amended. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a “Historical Museum Tax”:  for the year 2024 and that the County 
Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that 
will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the Historical Museum Fund 
2025 Appropriations; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 
  



2 
 

 
 

  
 
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
   

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 JAIME SALGAGO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 

 JOHN F. SWEENEY 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

 MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 

 
THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 

THE COUNTY OF  
 

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the Nursing Home Operations Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $2,900,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two Million, Nine 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,900,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, 
State of Illinois, as a County Tax for the purpose of maintaining a County Nursing Home for the 
year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to 
extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposed as set forth in 
the County Nursing Home Operations Fund 2025 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1  

2024 CO 

T A X L E V Y 
COUNTY NURSING HOME OPERATIONS FUND 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago did adopt a resolution for a 
referendum to establish a levy for the purpose of maintaining the County Nursing Home; and 

 
WHEREAS, a majority of the voters of Winnebago County, Illinois voting in the election of 

June 28, 2022 voted in favor of authorizing the County to increase the amount levied by the County 
from 0.0445% to 0.1% for the purpose of maintaining the County Nursing Home; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and 

 
WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in “An Act to Revise the 

Law in Relation to Counties,” as amended. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of Two 
Million, Nine Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,900,000) on all the taxable property in the County 
of Winnebago, State of Illinois, as a County Tax for the purpose of maintaining a County Nursing 
Home for the year 2024 and that the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized 
and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and 
purposed as set forth in the County Nursing Home Operations Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2  

  Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

 JOHN BUTITTA, 
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

 JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF  
 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS  DAY OF  2024. 
 
 
 

 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



 
 

   
    Ordinance Executive Summary 

 

  

 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz 
 
Committee:   Finance Committee 
 
Committee Date:  October 17th, 2024 
 
Resolution Title:   Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 

for the Children’s Advocacy Fund 
 
County Code:         Not Applicable 
 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24th, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes              Appropriation Amount:   $155,000 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:         N/A                 Budget Impact:  N/A 

 
Background Information: That there be and is hereby levied the sum of One Hundred, Fifty-Five 
Thousand Dollars ($155,000) on all the taxable property in the County of Winnebago, State of 
Illinois, for the said year 2024 for the purpose of establishing and maintaining a Children’s 
Advocacy Center, and said tax was authorized by the voters of the County of Winnebago on April 
20, 1993. the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby authorized and directed to extend a 
rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects and purposes as set forth in the 
Children’s Advocacy Project Fund 2025 Appropriations. 
 
Recommendation: Staff concurs  
 
Contract/Agreement: N/A 
 
Legal Review:  N/A 
 
Follow-Up: N/A 



1 

2024 CO 

T A X    L E V Y 
CHILDREN’S ADVOCACY FUND 

WHEREAS, The Finance Committee of the County Board of Winnebago County, State of 
Illinois, has reviewed the estimated revenue and expenditure budget for the fiscal year October 
1, 2024 through September 30, 2025; and, 

WHEREAS, said expenditure budget is for the purposes set forth in the “Children’s 
Advocacy Center Act.”  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that there be and is hereby levied the sum of One 
Hundred, Fifty-Five Thousand Dollars ($155,000) on all the taxable property in the County of 
Winnebago, State of Illinois, for the said year 2024 for the purpose of establishing and 
maintaining a Children’s Advocacy Center, and said tax was authorized by the voters of the 
County of Winnebago on April 20, 1993.  the County Clerk of said County be and is hereby 
authorized and directed to extend a rate of taxation that will produce said amount for the objects 
and purposes as set forth in the Children’s Advocacy Project Fund 2025 Appropriations; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois shall deliver a certified copy of this Ordinance to the County Clerk. 



2 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

(AGREE) (DISAGREE) 

JOHN BUTITTA,  
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JOHN BUTTITA,
FINANCE CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN

JAIME SALGADO, 
VICE CHAIRMAN

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

MICHAEL THOMPSON MICHAEL THOMPSON 

KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

THE ABOVE AND FOREGOING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY BOARD OF 
THE COUNTY OF  

WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS THIS _____DAY OF ___________________________2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 October 24, 2024  
 

 

Zoning Committee……….………….......………..……….....…Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

       PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS: 

 TO BE LAID OVER:   

1.  ORDINANCE GRANTING SITE APPROVAL OF A 5 MW COMMERCIAL SOLAR 
ENERGY FACILITY (AKA A SOLAR FARM) ON A 75.30 +- ACRE SITE COMMONLY 
KNOWN AS 5150 TATE ROAD (PIN: 07-31-200-006), ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61101, IN 
OWEN TOWNSHIP, District 5, requested by Tate Road Solar1, LLC (a subsidiary of 1115 Solar 
Development, LLC which is a subsidiary of New Leaf Energy, Inc), Lessee, represented by 
Nicolas Bellone, Project Manager. 

 ZBA Recommendation:  DENIAL (1-5) 
 ZC Recommendation: TBD 

  

2. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN ADJUSTMENT IN THE PER DIEM FOR THE 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 ZC Recommendation: TBD 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 

3.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not 
intended as an official public notice):  

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, November 13, 2024, at 5:30 p.m. in 
 Room 303 of the County Administration Building.   
 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 
 tentatively scheduled for Monday, November 25, 2024, at 5:15 p.m. in Room 303 of the 
 County Administration Building.   

 
  



1 

ORDINANCE 
OF  

THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2024 CO _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  ZONING COMMITTEE  
 

SPONSORED BY: JIM WEBSTER 
 

 
ORDINANCE GRANTING SITE APPROVAL OF A 5 MW COMMERCIAL SOLAR 

ENERGY FACILITY (AKA A SOLAR FARM) ON A 75.30 +- ACRE SITE COMMONLY 
KNOWN AS 5150 TATE ROAD (PIN: 07-31-200-006), ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS  61101,  

IN OWEN TOWNSHIP 
 

 
WHEREAS, Tate Road Solar1, LLC – a subsidiary of 1115 Solar Development, LLC 

which is a subsidiary of New Leaf Energy, Inc. (hereinafter “the Facility Owner”), formally filed 

an application for site approval to operate a 5 MW commercial solar energy farm (hereinafter “the 

Facility”) within unincorporated Winnebago County, Illinois on a 75.30 +- acre site commonly 

known as 5150 Tate Road (PIN: 07-31-200-006), Rockford, Illinois 61101 in Owen Township 

(hereinafter “the Property”) and specifically legal described as: 

Part of the East Half (1/2) of the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of Section 31, Township 45 North, Range 
1 East of the Third (3rd) Principal Meridian, bounded and described as follows, to-wit:  Beginning 
at the Northeast corner of the Northeast Quarter (1/4) of said Section; thence South 00 degrees 17' 
38" East, along the East line of said Quarter (1/4) Section, 2269.62 feet to the Northeast corner of 
premises conveyed by Trustee's Deed recorded in Microfilm No. 8838-1899 in the Recorder's 
Office  of Winnebago County, Illinois; thence South 89 degrees 19' 52" West, along the North line 
of aforesaid premises, so conveyed, 572.00 feet to the Northwest corner of aforesaid premises, so  
conveyed; thence South 00 degrees 17' 38" East, parallel with the East line of said Quarter (1/4) 
Section and along the West line of aforesaid premises, so conveyed, 381.00 feet, to the South line 
of said Quarter (1/4) Section and the Southwest corner of premises conveyed by Warranty Deed 
recorded in Document No.3112081 in aforesaid Recorder's Office; thence South 89degrees 19' 52" 
West, along the South line of said Quarter (1/4) Section, 747.96 feet, to the West line of the East 
Half (1/2) of said Quarter (1/4) Section; thence North 00 degrees 22' 11" West, along said line, 
2,650.55 feet to the North line of said Quarter (1/4) Section; thence North 89 degrees 19' 45" East,  
along the North line of said Quarter (1/4) Section, 1323.47 feet to the point of beginning; situated 
in the County of Winnebago and State of Illinois. 

 

WHEREAS, Illinois Counties Code, specifically 55 ILCS 5/5-12020 (hereinafter “the 

Statute”), effective January 27, 2023, governs the requirements for siting of commercial solar 

energy facilities in the State of Illinois and prohibits counties from enacting more restrictive 



2 

requirements in regard to said facilities than those set forth in the Statute. Consequently, the 

County may not adopt zoning regulations that disallow, permanently or temporarily, commercial 

solar energy facilities from being developed or operated in any district zoned to allow agricultural 

or industrial uses; and 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (hereinafter “County”) has amended its 

Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 90, of the Winnebago County Code (hereinafter 

“UDO”), to be in accord with the Statute, and thus, the commercial solar energy facility site 

approval application that was submitted for the Property, which is zoned AG, Agricultural Priority 

District, was reviewed in accordance with said UDO; and 

WHEREAS, the UDO provides that a request for siting approval for a commercial solar 

energy facility, “shall be approved if the request is in compliance with the standards and conditions 

imposed in 55 ILCS 5/5-12020 , the zoning ordinance adopted consistent with 55 ILCS 5/5-12020, 

and the conditions imposed under State and Federal statutes and regulations”; and 

WHEREAS, upon review of the application, the Facility Owner (Facility) has 

conceptually satisfied all of the requisite standards and conditions under the UDO, however, that, 

in the event a detail or representation in the application conflicts with the UDO, Statute or any 

other applicable Illinois law or regulation, the conflicting provision shall prevail and the Facility 

Owner shall adhere thereto and adjust the contradiction, as will be required, at time of construction 

permit submittal; and  

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the site approval request before the Zoning 

Board of Appeals (ZBA) on October 9, 2024, and the ZBA recommended denial (1-5); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Committee of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois considered the ZBA’s recommendation (motion) as well as the evidence submitted (at the 

public hearing) as it relates to the standards and conditions outlined within the UDO, and 



3 

consequently, the Zoning Committee recommended _______ (X-X) of the Facility Owner’s site 

approval request to install and operate a commercial solar energy facility on the Property. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED that the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois -after the consideration of the above noted recommendations, the standards 

and conditions outlined within the UDO and being fully advised on all other matters affiliated to 

the Property- hereby grants the Facility Owner’s site approval request to install and operate a 5 

MW or less commercial solar energy facility on a 75.30 +- acre site commonly known 5150 Tate  

Road (PIN: 07-31-200-006), Rockford, IL 61101 in Owen Township and specifically described in 

“1st Whereas”, subject to the following terms and stipulations: 

1. The commercial solar energy facility shall be developed in substantial conformance with 

the Layout and Materials Plan, the Civil Detail Plan, the Decommissioning Plan and 

Landscape Plan (aka a Vegetative Plan), all submitted by New Leaf Energy, plot date 04-

17-2024, and receive date 09-19-2024.   

2. Lighting of a permanent nature shall not be included within the development, unless 

required by law. Lighting for safety purposes, however, when triggered on by a motion 

detector, is permissible (since lighting will only be on, on a non-permanent basis, if ever).  

3. The Facility Owner shall strictly adhere to all the terms and conditions of the signed 

 Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement with the Illinois Department of Agriculture, 

 dated April 23, 2023 and April 26, 2024, and as may be amended, including, but not limited 

 to, any terms and conditions that are not specifically referenced or set forth in this 

 Ordinance. 

4. The Facility Owner shall submit a final vegetative plan, inclusive of the final vegetative 

management plan (consistent with the guidelines adopted by IDNR for such plans as well 

as the AIMA), for approval at time of construction permit submittal -pursuant to Section 

17.4 D. 11. of UDO- that includes mostly of a vegetative pollinator-friendly ground cover, 



4 

where practical (i.e. a wetland type ground cover may instead be better suited for a 

periodically wet detention basin), that is consistent with the goals of the Pollinator-friendly 

Solar Site Act. Moreover, the same plan shall include a screening along the south, east and 

north lot lines comprised of six (6) foot evergreens, two species, at time of planting that 

are spaced in a manner that is intended to provide a 100% screening at time of tree maturity.  

And lastly, the natural perimeter screening along the west lot line, when located on the 

Property, shall be maintained (not removed), with the exception of a substantiated 

necessary utility connection that cannot be routed elsewhere.      

5. The Facility Owner shall submit a final road use (route plan/transportation plan/traffic 

safety plan/use of public roads plan) agreement for approval at time of construction permit 

submittal -pursuant to Section 17.5.7 of UDO- with the County, and any other applicable 

unit of government such as the Township and or Illinois Department of Transportation. 

6. The Facility Owner shall submit a final drainage plan for approval at time of construction 

permit submittal -pursuant to Sections 17.4 D. 12. and 17.5.13 of UDO- with the County.  

7. The Facility Owner shall obtain all required permits and approvals  prior to taking any 

 construction action, including, but not limited to a building permit, a zoning 

 clearance/permit, a site access permit, Winnebago County Surface Water Management 

 Ordinance (WC-SWMO) permits / stormwater plan approvals (i.e. with regard to 

 detention, Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and NPDES Construction 

 General Permit), and the approval of an erosion sediment and control plan. 

8. During construction, the Facility Owner shall store all solar panels within an enclosed 

structure or on and under a tarp, especially any damaged panels, to prevent soil 

contamination from the components that are imbedded within the panels. 



5 

9. The Facility Owner shall provide the County with a final deconstruction / decommissioning 

Plan (estimate), for approval prior to final construction inspection -pursuant to Sections 

17.4 D.5. and 17.11 of UDO (based on the construction plans ultimately approved at time 

of construction permitting)- by an Illinois licensed professional engineer, inclusive of 

financial assurance, in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit or other form of surety 

acceptable to the County to cover the estimated costs of deconstruction of the Facility (see 

stipulation number 12 proposed by the Facility Owner for additional details with regard to 

the financial assurance to deconstruct / decommission the Facility). The County shall be 

the designated beneficiary of the financial surety, and the landowner shall be provided with 

a copy of the document. In the event of abandonment, the County may take all appropriate 

actions for deconstruction including drawing upon the financial assurance. 

10. The Facility Owner shall maintain and be listed on an insurance policy that includes 

liability coverage and property coverage in an amount necessary to cover the value of the 

commercial solar energy facility in the event the project is damaged or destroyed. 
 

11. In addition to the foregoing terms and stipulations within this Ordinance, the Facility 

Owner and Facility shall comply with all other requirements and standards as set forth in 

the UDO (i.e. permitting requirements, design and installation requirements, setback 

requirements, nuisance abatement requirements, and decommissioning requirements, etc.), 

Statute (i.e. noxious Weed Act) and any other applicable Illinois or Federal law or 

regulation, and any other County and local rules and regulations that are not inconsistent 

with the Statute. 

12. As proposed and agreed to by Facility Owner, on or before the completion of the final 

inspection (of the commercial solar energy facility on the Property), the Facility Owner 

shall provide the County with a financial assurance that covers 110% -instead of the 

minimum 10% upfront as outlined in the Agricultural Impact Mitigation Agreement- of the 



6 

estimated costs of destruction of the Facility as determined in the final deconstruction / 

decommission plan.    

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 

prepare and deliver certified copies of this Ordinance to the County Planning and Zoning Officer, 

County Building Official and the County Engineer. 

                                                                                                          Respectfully Submitted,                                                                                                                                              

        ZONING COMMITTEE                                          

                                                                                              
 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
 
Illinois this   day of__     2024. 

Agree  Disagree 
 
 
 

  

Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

 Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

Angie Goral 
 
 

 Angie Goral 
 

Paul Arena 
 
 

 Paul Arena 
 
 

Aaron Booker 
 

 Aaron Booker 
 
 

John Guevara 
 

 John Guevara 
 
 

Tim Nabors  Tim Nabors 
 
 

Dave Tassoni  Dave Tassoni 



7 

 
 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
Lori Gummow   
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 Joseph V. Chiarelli 
 Chairman of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 



RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2024 CR ______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ZONING COMMITTEE 
  

SPONSORED BY: JIM WEBSTER 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN ADJUSTMENT IN THE PER DIEM FOR THE 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Counties Code, 55 ILCS 5/5-12010, provides in part that “the 
members of the board of appeals shall be compensated on a per diem basis with a mileage 
allowance for travel, the amounts to be determined by the county board”; and 
 

WHEREAS, the per diem is to be paid to each Winnebago County Zoning Board of 
Appeals (ZBA) member that is in attendance at a scheduled and convened ZBA meeting; and 

 
WHEREAS, the members of the ZBA have not received an adjustment in the per diem 

since 2018; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Committee of the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois, having conferred with the Winnebago County Administration, recommends that the per 
diem for the members of the ZBA be adjusted from $100.00 to $200.00 per meeting effective 
immediately following the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that the per diem payment to be made to members of the Winnebago 
County Zoning Board of Appeals is hereby authorized, set and adjusted from $100.00 to $200.00 
per member that is in attendance at a scheduled and convened meeting of the Winnebago County 
Zoning Board of Appeals, effective immediately following the adoption of this Resolution. 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be effective on its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County 
Treasurer, County Auditor, County Board Office, Community Development Director and the 
Winnebago County Planning and Zoning Officer. 

 
 

 
 



2 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
        Zoning Committee 
 

Agree  Disagree 
 
 
 

  

Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

 Jim Webster, Chairman 
 
 

Angie Goral 
 
 

 Angie Goral 
 

Paul Arena 
 
 

 Paul Arena 
 
 

Aaron Booker 
 

 Aaron Booker 
 
 

John Guevara 
 

 John Guevara 
 
 

Tim Nabors  Tim Nabors 
 
 

Dave Tassoni  Dave Tassoni 
 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 
 
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 

 JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
 
 
Prepared By:    Debbie Crozier/Human Resources 
Committee:     Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:    October 17, 2024  
Resolution Title:     Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Blue Cross                           

Blue Shield for the Administration of a Self-Funded PPO/POS Insurance Plan 
Board Meeting Date: October 24, 2024   
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes                       Appropriation Amount:   Approx. $1,300,000 for all 
                                                                                                                      group insurance vendors 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 48500   43170         Budget Impact:   See below         

 
 
Background Information:   Winnebago County contracts with BCBS for administration of two self-
insured insurance plans (a high deductible PPO plan and a Co-Pay/POS plan).  BCBS provides 
employees with quality nationwide provider coverage and service. 
 
2025 Renewal:    The administration fee is increasing from $48.65/per employee per month to 
$49.83/per employee per month.  The prescription drug rebate credit is for every RX purchased, 
mail order or retail, that credit is increasing from $134.67 to $159.51.  The access fee is a percentage 
that is paid to access the PPO hospital discounts, that fee is decreasing from .72% to .68%.   
 
Recommendation:    County Administrator, Patrick Thompson and Human Resources Director, 
Debbie Crozier, have reviewed the resolution presented to the Board and recommend approval.   

 
Contract/Agreement:  January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025 
 
 
Legal Review:    Previously reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 
 
 
Follow-Up:    N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


 
 
 

County Board:  October 24, 2024  
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH BLUE CROSS BLUE 
SHIELD FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF A SELF-FUNDED PPO AND POS INSURANCE PLAN 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago in 2024 offers employees the option of participating in 

a self-funded Preferred Provider Organization plan (PPO) or a Point of Service plan (POS); the 
County’s Benefit Consultant recommends continuation of the PPO and POS plans with Blue Cross 
Blue Shield; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends the continuation of the 

administrative services by Blue Cross Blue Shield; and,   
 

 WHEREAS, Blue Cross Blue Shield has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County for 
the administration of the PPO and POS plans in 2025; see Resolution Exhibit A; and,  
 

Administration fee increase from $48.65/per employee per month to $49.83 per employee per month. 
This is a 2.4% increase from 2024 rates. 

The prescription drug rebate credit is increasing from -$134.67 to -$159.51. 
The access fee is decreasing in 2025 from .72% to .68%. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Blue Cross Blue Shield for the administration of the 
POS/PPO plans for the year January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF ILLINOIS, 2787 
MCFARLAND ROAD, ROCKFORD, IL 61107 for administration of the POS/PPO plans.   
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 



                         Respectfully Submitted, 
OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Winnebago County
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 ASO Renewal

Presented by:

Jacob Hoffman

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

1293677

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL
Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL.

  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 
   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association

exhibit a
Exhibit A  



PPO Contract Total

Projected Enrollment 1,059 12,708

Administration Fee **
Wellbeing Management / Enable BH

Medical Administration Fee - Mature ** $50.11 $636,798

Separate Line Item PEPM Fee
Third-Party Stop-Loss Carrier Fee $1.00 $12,708

Rebate Credits
Prescription Drug Rebate Credit * ($159.51) ($2,027,053)

Medical Rebate Credit ($2.50) ($31,770)

Total - Mature ** ($110.90) ($1,409,317)

 

Winnebago County
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 ASO Renewal

Administrative Fee and Additional Services

*This quote assumes Prime Therapeutics (PBM) Balanced drug list and Traditional Select network.
**Administration Fee does not include Advanced Payment Review (APR) services charged at 25% of claims savings.

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association
 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL
Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL.

1293677

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 
   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association



Current Renewal Change Contract Total
Projected Enrollment 1,013 1,059 4.5%

Single 536

Family 523

Administration Fee* $48.65 $49.83 2.4% Revised 10/3/24

Prescription Drug Rebate Credit *** ($134.67) ($159.51) 18.4% ($2,027,053)

Medical Rebate Credit ($2.50) ($2.50) 0.0% ($31,770)

Third-Party Stop Loss Carrier Fee $1.00 $1.00 0.0% $12,708

Total Fee PEPM ($87.52) ($110.90) 26.7% ($1,409,317)

Total Fixed Costs PEPM ($87.52) ($110.90) 26.7% ($1,409,317)

Illinois Access Fee 0.72% 0.68% -5.6% $121,323

Projected Average Claim Value PEPM $1,545.73 $1,708.99 10.6% $21,717,845

Total Projected Costs PEPM $1,458.21 $1,598.09 9.6% $20,308,528

 

Winnebago County
ASO Projection for the period of

January 1, 2025 - December 31, 2025

1/1/2025 ASO Renewal

FEE COMPARISON
Mature PPO

*Administration Fee does not include Advanced Payment Review (APR) services charged at 25% of claims savings.
***This quote assumes Prime Therapeutics (PBM) Balanced drug list and Traditional Select network.
If a third party pharmacy benefit manager is selected, additional charges will apply.

Legal Reserve Company, an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association
 

Proprietary and Confidential Information of BCBSIL
Not for use or disclosure outside BCBSIL, Employer, their respective affiliated companies and third-party representatives, except with written permission of BCBSIL.

1293677

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of IL, a Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual 

  A Division of Health Care Service Corporation, a Mutual Legal Reserve Company, 
   an Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association



Human Resources | 404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285 | Fax: (815) 319-4286 

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 
 
 

 
Prepared By:   Debbie Crozier/Human Resources 
Committee:   Operations and Administrative 
Committee Date:       October 17, 2024 
Resolution Title:      Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with    
     Northern Illinois Health Plans (NIHP) for Third Party Administrative    
       Services 
Board Meeting Date:  October 24, 2024 

 
Budget Information: 

 

Was item budgeted? Yes                             Appropriation Amount: Approx. $1,300,000 for all   
                                                                                                                         group insurance vendors 
If not, explain funding source: 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code: 48500 43170        Budget Impact: Est. $4,993/annually 

 
 

Background Information: Winnebago County contracts with NIHP for numerous services (dental, 
flex spending, COBRA, stop loss, etc.), we have had an administrative services contract in place with 
NIHP since January 1, 2007. Over the past several years the rate increases from NIHP have been 
minimal, for 2025 they are requesting a $.35 increase/per employee per month on the dental 
administration rate, all other services will remain at the same rate as 2024. The proposed rates are 
effective through December 31, 2025. 

 
Recommendation: Patrick Thompson and Debbie Crozier have reviewed the resolution 
presented to the Board and recommend approval. 

 

 
Contract/Agreement: January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025 

 
 

Legal Review:  Previously reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 

 
Follow-Up:  N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  October 24, 2024  
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH NORTHERN ILLINOIS 
HEALTH PLANS (NIHP) FOR THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

  
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, offers employees the option of participating in 

a dental plan, flexible spending accounts and other administrative services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends the continuation of the 

administrative services by NIHP; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, NIHP has proposed the attached rates to Winnebago County for administrative 
services in 2025; see Resolution Exhibit A; and,  

 
 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed agreement and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with NIHP for administrative services for the year January 1, 
2025 through December 31, 2025.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
with NORTHERN ILLINOIS HEALTH PLANS, 77 W. LINCOLN BLVD., SUITE 402, FREEPORT, IL 61032 for 
administrative services. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 
 
  



 
 
    Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 

 
PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



773 W. Lincoln Blvd., Suite 402 / Freeport, IL 61032 

September 25, 2024 

RE: Winnebago County, Renewal January 1, 2025 

NIHP wants to thank both Winnebago County and Gallagher for the opportunity to continue to provide 
administration services for Winnebago County. We look forward to continuing to build our partnership by 
providing specialized services that fulfill your expectations. I am pleased to present the administrative services 
renewal for Winnebago County effective January 1, 2025-December 1, 2025. 

 

ASO Fee 1/1/23 & 
1/1/24 

Effective 
1/1/25 

Current NIHP Services:   

Flexible Spending: Medical (including Debit Card) $6.25 $6.25 
Flexible Spending: Dependent Care $4.25 $4.25 
Flexible Spending: Annual Fee $375 $375 
Out-of-Network Discounts (wraps and U&C) 25% of savings 25% of savings 
HIPAA Certificate Administration (per certificate) $5.25 $5.25 
COBRA Administration (per occurrence):   

Initial Notification $5.25 $5.25 
Member Termination $26.00 $26.00 
Member Enrollment $36.50 $36.50 

ID Cards (per card) $2.00 $2.00 
Dental Claims Administration (PEPM) $3.50 $3.85 
Life Insurance Billing Administration (PPPM) $1.00 $1.00 
Stop Loss Administration (PEPM) $1.75 $1.75 
Retiree Admin Fee (PEPM) $5.99 $5.99 
Services from other vendors:   

Cigna Dental PPO (Broader network) $2.95 $2.95 
 
 

Additional Information: 

• NIHP cannot guarantee fees from outside vendors 

EXHIBIT A 



 

  Resolution Executive Summary 
 
 

Human Resources  |  404 Elm St, Rm 220, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319- 4285  |  Fax: (815) 319-4286   

 

 
 
 
Prepared By:    Debbie Crozier/Human Resources 
Committee:     Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:     October 17, 2024 
Resolution Title:     Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Amwins  
                                   Group Benefits for the Administration of a Retiree Medical and RX Plan     
Board Meeting Date: October 24, 2024 
 
Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    N/A                        Appropriation Amount:   N/A 
If not, explain funding source:    
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  N/A                     Budget Impact:   N/A 

 
 
Background Information:   Winnebago County offers the retirees age 65 and over the option of 
electing a Medicare supplement and RX plan.  The retiree pays 100% of the cost of this plan, we 
currently have 21 retirees over the age of 65 covered under this plan. The plan with Amwins has 
been in effect since January 1, 2013.   
 
 
Recommendation:    Patrick Thompson and Debbie Crozier have reviewed the resolution 
presented to the Board and recommend its approval.   

 
 
Contract/Agreement:  January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025 
 
 
 
Legal Review:    Reviewed with the States Attorney’s Office. 
 
 
 
Follow-Up:    N/A 

http://www.wincoil.us/


County Board:  October 24, 2024  
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:   Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A RENEWAL AGREEMENT WITH AMWINS 
GROUP BENEFITS FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF A RETIREE MEDICAL AND RX PLAN  

  
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago in 2024 offers a fully-insured Medicare supplement 

and RX plan to the retirees through Amwins Group Benefits; the County’s Benefit Consultant 
recommends continuation of the Medicare Supplement and RX plan through Amwins; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County’s Benefit Consultant recommends the continuation of the 

administrative services by Amwins; and,   
 
 WHEREAS, Amwins Group Benefits has proposed the following rates to Winnebago County 
for the Medicare Supplement Plan and RX plan in 2025; see Resolution Exhibit A; and, 
 

Medicare Supplement Plan and Part D Drug Plan:   $564.45 per retiree per month 
 

This is a 6.5% increase from 2024 rates. 

Retirees that elect this plan pay the full cost. 
 

(We have 2 retirees in Florida that have a different rate with a 0% rate increase for 2025.) 
 

 WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the renewal and recommends that the County Board 
authorize execution of an agreement with Amwins Group Benefits for the Medicare supplement and 
RX plan for retirees for the year January 1, 2025 through December 31, 2025.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is hereby authorized to execute an agreement 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A with AMWINS GROUP BENEFITS, 10 LASALLE STREET, SUITE 
3200, CHICAGO, IL 60603 for the Medicare Supplement and RX plan for Winnebago County retirees.   
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Director of Human Resources, 
County Auditor and the County Board Office. 
  



 
 
 
 
 
    Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

 VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIRPERSON 
 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

 PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

 JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Winnebago County 
2025 Retiree Medical & Rx Plan Renewal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

sPage | 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2025 Renewal Summary: 
Winnebago County 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRESENTED BY: 
Justin Goodwin 
Amwins Group Benefits, LLC 
Senior Vice President 
T 301.601.9396 
M 630.669.5500 
justin.goodwin@Amwins.com 

   EXHIBIT A  

mailto:justin.goodwin@Amwins.com


Winnebago County 
2025 Retiree Medical & Rx Plan Renewal 

Page | 2 

 

 

Renewal Summary 
We are pleased to provide the 2025 Group Retiree Medical and Prescription Drug Program Renewal for Winnebago 
County. Other than the annual Medicare deductible and co-insurance adjustments for Parts A, B, and D, the plan 
designs will remain unchanged for 2025. Please review the program details enclosed in this summary. 

 
As always, Amwins Group Benefits will continue to provide our extensive administrative services including: 

Eligibility Management Program Administration 
Annual and Monthly Enrollments Billing and Collection of Premiums 
Retiree Communications Retiree Specialty Contact Center 
Customer Service Ongoing Retiree Advocacy and Support 

 
Retiree Medical Plan: 

Underwritten by: Transamerica Life Insurance Company 
Effective January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025 

 2024 2025 % Increase # of Lives 
CW Medical Plan $324.00 $345.06 6.50% 18 
FL Medical Plan1 $289.39 $289.39 0.00% 1 
FL Medical Plan2 $216.73 $216.73 0.00% 1 

Amwins Group Benefits is a third-party administrator for Transamerica Life Insurance Company. Amwins and Transamerica are not affiliated. 
Members of FL are subject to state-mandated benefits and rates. Rates are based on zip and issue age. These rates are still in effect but are 
subject to change at any point throughout the year. 
1Issue age 79 Region 1 
2Issue age 67 Region 1 

 
Prescription Drug Plan: 

Underwritten by: Express Scripts Medicare 
Effective January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2026 
 2024 2025 % Increase 2026 Renewal # of Lives 

Rx Plan $219.39 $219.39 0% 0% 20 
*If any government action, change in federal or state law or regulation, change in the interpretation of any law or regulation, or any action by a 
pharmaceutical manufacturer has an adverse effect on the pricing terms outlined in this renewal herein, then Express Scripts Medicare will 
have the right, upon notice, to modify these pricing terms. 



Winnebago County 
2025 Retiree Medical & Rx Plan Renewal 

Page | 3 

 

 

Overall Combined Program: 
 

 2024 2025 % Increase # of Lives 
CW Medical & Rx Plan $543.39 $564.45 3.88% 18 
FL Medical & Rx Plan* $508.78 $508.78 1.60% 1 
FL Medical & Rx Plan** $436.12 $436.12 1.88% 1 

Amounts are inclusive of all services performed by Amwins Group Benefits, insurance premiums and non-insurance costs. Administration 
services are provided by Amwins Group Benefits, LLC, a division of Amwins Group, Inc. Manage my Health is not included in the rates 
above. 
1Issue age 79 Region 1 
2Issue age 67 Region 1 

 
 

Retiree Program Plan Designs 
Retiree Medical Plan: 

Underwritten by: Transamerica Life Insurance Company 
Effective January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025 

2025 Medical Plan 
Deductible * $0 
Coinsurance 0% 

Total OOP Max ** $0 
Lifetime Benefit Max Unlimited 

* Part B Deductible (2024: $240) 
** Includes Calendar Year Deductible 

 
Prescription Drug Plan: 

Underwritten by: Express Scripts Medicare 
Effective January 1, 2025 – December 31, 2025 

2025 (30 Day Retail)** 
Calendar Year Deductible: $0 
Tier 1: Preferred Generic $5 
Tier 2: Non-Preferred Generic $10 
Tier 3: Preferred Brand $25 
Tier 4: Non-Preferred Brand $60 
Tier 5: Specialty 33% 
Catastrophic Coverage: 
Out-of-Pocket Maximum: $2,000 $0 Copays 



Winnebago County 
2025 Retiree Medical & Rx Plan Renewal 

Page | 4 

 

 

 
Group Retiree Program Renewal Acceptance 2025 

Please review and confirm the 2025 subsidy and billing summary. Please return the signed electronic copy to 
kimberly.pagliuca@amwins.com 

Subsidy Summary: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Please be advised, we have reviewed the proposed plans, rates, subsidy levels, and billing modes and 
communications. We authorize Amwins to mail these renewal communications to our retirees, advising them 
of the 2025 changes. 

 
 
 
 

 
Print Name Print Title 

 
 
 
 

Signature Date 

 2024 Subsidy 2025 Subsidy 
(please provide if changing) 

All Members Not Available Not Available 
 
Billing Modes: 

 

 2024 Billing Modes 2025 Billing Modes 
All Members List Bill List Bill 

 

mailto:kimberly.pagliuca@amwins.com


 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

Prepared By:      Purchasing Department 
Committee:      Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date:       October 17, 2024 
Board Meeting Date:     October 24, 2024  
Resolution Title:           Resolution Awarding Replacement of Outdoor Warning Sirens County-Wide 
       Using 2025 Operating Budget Funds  
 

Was item budgeted? Yes                                            Amount Budgeted: $145,000 
                                                                                         Appropriation Amount: $169,528 

If not, explain funding source:   

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                               Descriptor: General Fund 
13500-46730 

 

Background Information: The County is in need of upgrading its outdoor warning sirens. Currently 
the county has a total of 79 sirens, only 33 are working.  The Winnebago County Sherriff’s Office 
worked with the Purchasing Department to obtain three quotes to repair 46 out of the 79 sirens. 
The quotes provided are to repair the 46 sirens that are not operating. After the repair, all 79 
sirens within Winnebago County will be working.  (See Resolution Exhibit A). 
 
The siren equipment is proprietary. However, we were still able to obtain the three quotes.  
American Signal Corporation (ASC) presented the lowest offer to repair and maintain the sirens. 
ASC based in Milwaukee, Wisconsin initially installed the sirens and has provided maintenance on 
the system since 2009.    
 
Recommended By:  Trent Brass, Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 
 
Follow-Up Steps: Purchasing will prepare the Purchase Order to American Signal Corporation in 
the amount of $169,528. 
 



County Board Meeting: October 24, 2024 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

 RESOLUTION AWARDING REPLACEMENT OF OUTDOOR WARNING SIRENS COUNTY-WIDE  

USING 2025 OPERATING FUNDS 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 

Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-357(d) 
(Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
 (g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Outdoor Emergency Warning Sirens are in need of repair; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County went out for quotes and pricing on a repair and replacement plan as 
well as long-term maintenance support; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) for the aforementioned purchase 
and recommends awarding to:  

 

AMERICAN SIGNAL CORPORATION - MASS NOTIFICATION SOLUTIONS 
8600 W. BRADLEY ROAD 
MILWAUKEE, WI 53224 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a County Purchase Order, on behalf 
of the County of Winnebago, in the amount of $169,528 to ASC – Mass Notification Solutions 8600 
West Bradley Road Milwaukee, WI 53224. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and deliver 
certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Court Services, Juvenile Detention Center 
Administrator, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, Facilities Director, County Board Office 
and County Auditor.                  

 



Respectfully Submitted, 
          OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Exhibit A



Resolution Exhibit A



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 

































































































































































































 

Public Safety & 
Judiciary 

Committee 



 
 
 

 
Resolution Executive Summary 

 
    
 
Prepared By:  Purchasing Department  
Committee Name: Public Safety & Judiciary Committee  
Committee Date: October 16, 2024  
Board Date:  October 24, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Inmate Health Care Services-JDC & Jail Contract 

Extension  
 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES                Amount Budgeted?   
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?   

Over or Under approved amount?    By:                                        
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 40115-43150   Descriptor: WCSO/Jail- Department & Commissary                                            
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 43100-43150   Descriptor: JDC- Detention Levy 
Budget Impact? $869,802.39 

 

Background Information: In May of 2024, the Purchasing Department went out for Request for 
Proposal 24P-2349 for Inmate Health Care Services for the JDC and Jail.  The County received a 
total of three submissions from providers.  The evaluation stage is still in process.  In order to 
maintain service, the Purchasing Department contacted UICOMR to see if they would provide 
an extension to the existing contact until a new one is put into place.  UICOMR agreed to 
extend the contract until December 31, 2024 while honoring their current pricing.  UICOMR 
drafted Amendments for both the JDC and the Jail and the amendments were reviewed by the 
State’s Attorney’s Office. (See Resolution Exhibit A). 
  

Recommended By: The Winnebago County Juvenile Detention Center Superintendent, Julie 
McCray-Grotto, the Winnebago County Jail Superintendent, Kevin Ogden and Corrections 
Bureau Captain, Justin Egler. 
 

Contract/Agreement Information:  The amendments to the original agreement will allow the 
contract to be extended until December 31, 2024 or until a new contract is in place once 
evaluations and negotiations are over. 
 
 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will route amendments for the proper signatures. 



     County Board Meeting: October 24, 2024 
  
  

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by: Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by: Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
 

2024 CR  
 
 

Resolution Awarding Inmate Health Care Services- JDC & Jail Contract Extension 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Jail and Juvenile Detention Center requires health 
care services for inmates and detainees; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Purchasing Department accepted proposals for Inmate 
Health Care Services Juvenile Detention Center and Jail – RFP#24P-2349; and 
 

 WHEREAS, proposals were received from three providers and are currently in the 
evaluation phase of the process; and 
 

  WHEREAS, until a new contract is awarded, the current provider, University of Illinois 
College of Medicine Rockford, has agreed to an extension of their contract until December 31, 
2024 without a price increase for services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the amendments for the extension for Inmate 
Health Care Services for the Juvenile Detention Center and Jail, Resolution Exhibit A, and 
recommends awarding amendments as follows: 
 

UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS COLLEGE OF MEDICINE- ROCKFORD 
 1601 PARKVIEW AVENUE 

ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61107 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the County Board Chairman is authorized to execute amendments to extend Inmate 
Health Care Services until December 31, 2024 or until a new contract agreement is set in place, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, Illinois with UNIVERSITY OF COLLEGE OF MEDICINE-
ROCKFORD, 1601 PARKVIEW AVENUE, ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61107, in substantially the same form 
as attached Resolution Exhibit A. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Winnebago County Sheriff, 
Superintendent of Corrections, Corrections Bureau Captain, Director of Court Services, 
Juvenile Detention Center Superintendent, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, County 
Board Office, and County Auditor.                                                                                                                                                                                          



Respectfully submitted, 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



CN-00087593 | Amendment 9 to CN-00041052 | CR 13710565 

AMENDMENT NO. 9 TO 
HEALTH SERVICESAGREEMENT 
(UIC REF. NO. CN-00041052) 

BETWEEN 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 

AND 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS 

This Amendment No. 9 ("Amendment") is made to the Health Services Agreement ("Agreement") entered 
into by and between the County of Winnebago, an Illinois body politic, and the Winnebago County Sheriff’s 
Office (hereinafter collectively referred to as "County") and The Board of Trustees of the University of 
Illinois, a public body corporate and politic of the State of Illinois, on behalf of its University of Illinois 
Chicago campus College of Medicine-Rockford, located at 1601 Parkview Avenue, Rockford, Illinois 61107 
(hereinafter referred to as "UICOMR"). County and UICOMR shall be collectively referred to herein as "the 
Parties" and individually as "a Party". This Amendment shall be effective as of October 1, 2024. 

RECITALS 

Whereas, County and UICOMR entered into that certain Agreement, as amended, last signed on March 
31, 2023, for the delivery of on-site health care services to adult inmates at the Winnebago County 
corrections facility for the period of April 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024; and 

Whereas, County and UICOMR desire to amend the contractual relationship under the said Agreement; 

Now therefore, in consideration of mutual covenants contained herein, it is agreed by and between the 
Parties to amend the Agreement as follows: 

I. ARTICLE XI: TERM AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT, Article
11.1, Contract Term shall be modified to read as follows:

11.1 Contract Term. This contract shall commence on October 1, 2024, at 12:00 am., 
and shall expire on December 31, 2024, at 11 :59 p.m.; unless renewed or extended 
as provided herein. 

Furthermore, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, 
County reserves the right to extend the term of this Agreement, or of any renewal of this 
Agreement, for up to 90 days if necessary to continue a source of inmate health care 
services if a new or replacement contract is not executed prior to the expiration date. 

II. ARTICLE XII: COMPENSATION shall be modified to read as follows:

12.1 Base Compensation. County will pay UICOMR the sum of Eight Hundred 
F i f t e e n  Thousand, F o u r  Hundred Thirty-Eight Dollars and 
76 cents ($815,438.76) for the three (3) month extension of the 
contract, being October 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024, payable in 
three (3) monthly installments of Two Hundred 

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Seventy-one Thousand, Eight Hundred Twelve Dollars and 92 cents 
($271,812.92). UICOMR will bill County on or before the seventh day of each 
month preceding the month for which the services are to be rendered, and 
County agrees to pay UICOMR for those services in advance of the 
services being rendered. In the event this Agreement should, for any reason 
terminate on a date other than the end of the calendar month, compensation 
to UICOMR will be prorated accordingly for the shortened month, and 
UICOMR will reimburse County for any over payment. 

III. In all other respects, the Agreement is hereby reaffirmed and ratified. All additional
terms and conditions remain as stated in the original Agreement last signed on 3/28/2019,
along with Amendment 1 last signed on 3/30/2020, Amendment 2 last signed on 9/2/2020,
Amendment 3 last signed on 2/5/2021, Amendment 4 last signed on 6/28/2021,
Amendment 5 last signed on 8/31/2022, Amendment 7 last signed on 10/18/22, and
Amendment 8 last signed on 3/31/2024.

[SIGNATURE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



 

CN-00087593 | Amendment 9 to CN-00041052 | CR 13710565 
 

 

In witness whereof, County and UICOMR have caused this Amendment No. 8 to be executed on 
the date and year last written below. 

 

The Board of Trustees of the 
University 

 
 

By: ------------------------- - 
Name: Paul N. Ellinger 

Title: Comptroller 

 
 

Printed Name and Title 
of Comptroller Delegate 

Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office 
 

By:     
Name:       

Title:      

 
Date:       



 

CN-00087595 | Amendment 7 to CN-00041051 | CR 13711189 
 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 7 
TO 

HEAL1H SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(UIC REF. NO. CN-00041051) 

BETWEEN 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 

AND 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS 

 
This Amendment No. 7 is made to the Health Services Agreement ("Agreement") entered into by and 
between the County of Winnebago, an Illinois body politic (hereinafter referred to as "County'') and The 
Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois, a public body, corporate and politic of the State of Illinois, 
on behalf of its University of Illinois at Chicago campus College of Medicine-Rockford, located at 1601 
Parkview Avenue, Rockford, Illinois 61107 (hereinafter referred to as "UICOMR"). County and UICOMR 
shall be collectively referred to herein as "the Parties" and individually as "a Party". 

RECITALS 

Whereas, County and UICOMR entered into that certain Agreement, last signed on March 13, 2019, for 
the delivery of on-site health care services to juvenile detainees at the Winnebago County Juvenile 
Detention Center for the term of April 1, 2019 through March 31, 2020; and 

Whereas, County and UICOMR extended the Agreement for the 1st of four (4) annuaJ renewal periods, 
for the period April I, 2020 through March 31, 2021 with Amendment No. 1 last signed on March 30, 
2020; and 

 
Whereas, County and UICOMR modified the Agreement with Amendment No. 2 last signed on July 15, 
2020 regarding Article VIII Compensation; and 

Whereas, County and UICOMR extended the Agreement for the 2nd of four (4) annual renewal periods, 
for the period April l, 2021 tb,rough March 31, 2022 with Amendment No. 3 last signed on February 5, 
2021. County reserves the right to extend agreement up to two (2) additional one-year periods; and 

 
Whereas, County and UICOMR modified the Agreement with Amendment No. 4 last signed on May 
28, 2021 regarding Article X, Miscellaneous, Article l0.6, Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 (PREA); 
and 

 
Whereas, County and UICOMR extended the Agreement for the 3rd of four (4) annual renewal periods, 
for the period April 1, 2022 through March 31, 2023 with Amendment No. 5 last signed on March 28, 
2022. County reserves the right to extend agreement up to one (I) additional one-year period; and 
 
Whereas, County and UICOMR extended the Agreement for the fourth of five (5) annual renewal periods, 
for the period April 1, 2023 through September 30, 2024 with Amendment No. 6 last signed on March 
31, 2023; and 

Whereas, County and UICOMR desire to amend the contractual relationship under the said Agreement; 
 

Now therefore, in consideration of mutual covenants contained herein, it is agreed by and between the 
Parties to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 
I. ARTICLE VII: TERM AND TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT, the first paragraph of 

Article 7.1 shall be modified to read as follows: 



CN-00087595 | Amendment 7 to CN-00041051 | CR 13711189 

Article 7.1 Contract Term. 

"This contract shall commence on October 1, 2024, and shall expire on December 31, 2024, unless 
renewed or extended as provided herein. 

 "ARTICLE VIII: COMPENSATION, Article 8.1 shall be modified to read as follows: 

"County will pay UICOMR the sum of Fifty-Four Thousand, Three Hundred Sixty- Three 
Dollars and 63 cents ($54,363.63) for the three months of the contract, being October 1, 2024 
through December 31, 2024, payable in three (3) monthly installments of Eighteen Thousand 
One Hundred Twenty-One Dollars and 21 cents ($18,121.21). UICOMR will bill County on or 
before the seventh day of each month preceding the month for which the services are to be 
rendered, and County agrees to pay UICOMR for those services in advance of the services 
being rendered. In the event this Agreement should, for any reason terminate on a date other 
than the end of the calendar month, compensation to UICOMR will be prorated 
accordingly for the shortened month, and UICOMR will reimburse County for any over 
payment." 

In all other respects, the Agreement is hereby reaffirmed and ratified. All additional terms 
and conditions remain as stated in the original Agreement last signed on 3/28/2019, along 
with Amendment I last signed on 3/30/20, Amendment 2 last signed on 7/15/20, 
Amendment 3 last signed on 2/5/21, Amendment 4 last signed on 5/28/21, Amendment 5 
last signed on 3/28/2022, and Amendment 6 last signed on 3/31/2023. 

In witness whereof, County and UICOMR have caused this Amendment No. 7 to be 
executed on the date and year last written below. 

The Board of Trustees of 
the University of Illinois 

By:   _ 

Name: Paul N. Ellinger 

Title: Comptroller 

Printed Name and Title of 
Comptroller Delegate 

Date: 

County of Winnebago 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 



 
 

   
    Resolution Executive Summary 

 

  

Prepared By:      Purchasing Department 
Committee:      Public Safety & Judiciary Committee 
Committee Date:       October 16, 2024 
Board Meeting Date:    October 24, 2024  
Resolution Title:             Resolution Awarding Replacement Dishwasher Bid for the Winnebago  

   County Jail  
 

Was item budgeted? Yes                                            Amount Budgeted: $150,000 
                                                                                         Appropriation Amount: $145,056 

If not, explain funding source:   

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:                                               Descriptor: Aramark Grant – Commissary Funds 
 

 

Background Information: The Winnebago County Jail is in need of a commercial dishwasher 
replacement.  The current dishwasher is original to the jail. Through the Aramark Food Service 
agreement funding was granted for $150,000 to utilize for kitchen equipment.  
 
The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department requested an Invitation for Bid. IFB 24B-2367 was 
issued in September of 2024 for purchasing a replacement dishwasher and providing installation. 
It was advertised to 44 vendors as well as posted on Demand Star and the RRStar. Six companies 
attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting. Five bids were obtained with Stafford Smith Inc. 
presenting the best offer for purchasing and installation of the unit in the amount of $145,056. 
 
Recommended By:  Justin Egler, Corrections Bureau Captain 
 
Follow-Up Steps: Purchasing will prepare the Purchase Order to Stafford Smith Incorporated in 
the amount of $145,056. 
 



     County Board Meeting: October 24, 2024 
  
  

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by: Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by: Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
 

2024 CR  
 
 

Resolution Awarding Replacement Dishwasher Bid for the Winnebago County Jail 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Jail is in need of a Dishwasher Replacement; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Purchasing Department accepted bids for Winnebago 
County Jail Dishwasher Replacement – IFB#24B-2367; and 
 

 WHEREAS, bids were received from five vendors; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety and Judiciary Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, has Bid Tab (Resolution Exhibit A) for the aforementioned 
purchase and recommends awarding to: 
 

STAFFORD-SMITH, INCORPORATED 
 W226 N825 EASTMOUND DRIVE SUITE B 

WAUKESHA, WISCONSIN 53186 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue a County 
Purchase Order, on behalf of the County of Winnebago, in the amount of $145,056 to 
Stafford-Smith Inc. W226 N825 Eastmound Drive Suite B, Waukesha, WI 53186. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Court Services, 
Juvenile Detention Center Administrator, Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, Facilities 
Director, County Board Office and County Auditor.   



Respectfully submitted, 

PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 

 

  

BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR  BRAD LINDMARK, CHAIR 

 

AARON BOOKER  AARON BOOKER 

 

JEAN CROSBY 

 

 JEAN CROSBY 

 

ANGIE GORAL 

 

 ANGIE GORAL 

 

KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

 KEVIN MCCARTHY 

 

TIM NABORS 

 

 TIM NABORS 

 

CHRIS SCROL  CHRIS SCROL 

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 

 



VENDOR NAME
Stafford-Smith Inc. 

Waukesha, WI
Restaurant Supply LLC.  

Clearwater, FL

Tiles In Style                           
DBA Taza Construction  

South Holland, IL

Douglas Equipment   
Bluefield, WV

Cooks Direct Inc.    
Woodridge, IL

INSTALLATION $13,602.04 $24,456.00 $27,550.00 $16,380.00 $13,530.00

DISHWASHER UNIT $131,453.55 $118,050.29 $208,800.00 $128,681.34 $168,754.39

MECHANICAL WORK Included $33,600 Included Included Included

SHIPPING/FREIGHT COSTS No Additional Cost No Additional Cost Included No Additional Cost Included

TOTAL BID COST $145,056 176,106 236,350 145,061 182,284

BID TAB
24B-2367 WINNEBAGO COUNTY JAIL DISHWASHER REPLACEMENT

BID OPENING - OCTOBER 4, 2024 @ 11:00 AM

Winnebago County Purchasing Department
404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov

Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



LEGISLATIVE & 
LOBBYING 

 COMMITTEE 



 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



 

  
Appointments 

 
 



 

NEW BUSINESS 



 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  Clerk.wincoil.gov 
Phone: (815) 319-4250 | Fax: (815) 969-0259  

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: October 24, 2024 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 

1. County Clerk Gummow received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 
Commission the following: 

 
a. Byron Station-Request for Information for NRC Commercial-Grade Dedication 

Inspection: Inspection Report 05000454/2025010; 05000455/2025010 
 

b. Notice of Meeting with Constellation Energy Generation, LLC 
 

2. County Clerk Gummow received from BFI Waste Systems of North America, LLC-Davis 
Junction Landfill a letter regarding a Notice of Class 2 Permit Modification and Public 
Meeting on Monday November 4, 2024 to discuss a modification to the facility’s RCRA 
Post-Closure Permit.  

 
3. County Clerk Gummow received a Monthly Report from the Winnebago County Clerk 

and Winnebago County Recorder’s Office for September, 2024.  
 

4. County Clerk Gummow received from The City of Rockford following documents 
regarding the appointment of Ashley Sarver to the Rockford Mass Transit District: 

 
a. Certification of appointment from Mayor McNamara 
b. Oath of Office, signed by Ashley Sarver 
c. Memorandum from Mayor McNamara to the City Council.  

http://www.wincoil.us/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Revised Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Terri Hitzke
	Roy Forshay
	Miles Nielsen
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the General Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the IMRF Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the County Highway Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the County Bridge Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Federal Aid Matching Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Health Department Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Tort Judgment and Liability Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Social Security Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Veterans Assistance Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Detention Home Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Historical Museum Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Nursing Home Operations Fund
	Ordinance to Authorize a Levy of Property Taxes in Fiscal Year 2025 for the Children’s Advocacy Fund
	Zoning Committee
	Ordinance Granting Site Approval of a 5 MW Commercial Solar Energy Facility (AKA A Solar Farm) on a 75.30 +- Acre Site Commonly Known as 5150 Tate Rd (PIN: 07-31-200-006), Rockford, IL 61101, in Owen Township
	Resolution Authorizing an Adjustment in the Per Diem For The Winnebago  County Zoning Board of Appeals
	Economic Development Committee
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Blue Cross Blue Shield for the Administration of a Self-Funded PPO/POS Insurance Plan
	Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Northern Illinois Health Plans (NIHP) for Third Party AdministrativeServices
	Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a Renewal Agreement with Amwins Group Benefits for the Administration of a Retiree Medical and RX Plan
	Resolution Awarding Replacement of Outdoor Warning Sirens County-Wide Using 2025 Operating Budget Funds
	Public Works Committee
	(24-037) Resolution Authorizing the Jurisdictional Transfer of Bell School Rd, from Argus Dr to Guilford Rd, out of the Winnebago County Highway System and into the City of Rockford St System
	(24-038) Resolution Authorizing the Jurisdictional Transfer of Linden Rd, from Alpine Rd Easterly for 2,662 ft., out of the Winnebago Highway System and into the City of Rockford St System
	(24-039) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of Annual Professional Services Agreements with Various Engineering Structural, Geotechnical, Testing, and Appraisal Services Companies
	(24-040) Resolution Authorizing a Joint Funding Agreement with the United States Dept. of the Interior Geological Survey for the Operations of a Streamflow  Gaging Station on the Kishwaukee River
	(24-041) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for Winnebago Rd Infrastructure Improvements
	(24-042) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Bid for the Elevated Water Storage Tank Improvements at the Winnebago County Water District
	(24-043) Resolution Authorizing the Award of Materials Bids for the Riverside Blvd Project Between Material Ave and Sage Dr
	(24-044) Resolution Authorizing the purchase of a Utility Tractor
	Public Safety & Judiciary Committee
	Resolution Awarding Inmate Health Care Services-JDC & Jail Contract Extension
	Resolution Awarding Replacement Dishwasher Bid for the Winnebago County Jail
	Legislative & Lobbying Committee
	Unfinished Business
	Appointments
	Appointments read in on September 26, 2024
	A. Winnebago County Health Department - 1. Penelope M. Lechtenberg (New Appointment)  2. Lori Thompson (New Appointment)
	B. New Milford Fire Protection District - 1. Walter Anderson (New Appointment)
	C. Rockford Area Venues and Entertainment Authority (RAVE) - 1. Megan McCoy (Reappointment)
	New Business
	Announcements & Communications
	Adjournment



